1986

Katherine Wentland Gorrell v. Robert E. Gorrell : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The issues presented by this Appeal are as follows:

1. Where the Appellant and his wife, the Decedent, whose estate is the Respondent in the above entitled action, have resided together in the same premises for more than twenty-two and a half (22½) years, and the Appellant was the primary income producer for the family, has the District Court made a finding clearly against the weight of the evidence in finding that the cash found in the home subsequent to the demise of the Appellant's spouse is an asset only of the non-producing spouse?

2. Where the Appellant and his wife, the decedent, whose estate is the Respondent in the above entitled action, have resided together in the same premises for more than twenty-two and a half ($22\frac{1}{2}$) years, wherein the primary income producer for the family was the Appellant, has the District Court abused its discretion in requiring that the burden of proof that the cash funds found in the home rested upon the Appellant by a preponderance of the evidence, or did, in fact, the burden of proof fall upon the estate to prove that the funds were solely the assets of the estate?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an action wherein the Respondent, the estate of Katherine Wentland Gorrell, Deceased, who was the wife of the Appellant, petitioned the Lower Court to recover property of Decedent, which was filed against Appellant herein. The petition to recover property of Decedent was filed by Respondent with the aid and assistance of counsel, Michael J. Glasmann, Esq., and the Appellant appeared by and through counsel, Pete N. Vlahos, Esq. The Court granted a Judgment in favor of the estate of Katherine Wentland Gorrell, and found the cash asset to be solely an asset of the estate.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Appellant, Robert Gorrell, and his now deceased wife, Katherine Gorrell, were intermarried on the 17th day of November, 1961, and ever since said time, until the demise of Katherine Gorrell, on the 4th of May, 1984, at the age of eighty (80) years, Appellant and Katherine Gorrell lived together as husband and wife, constituting the marriage of twenty-two (22) years and six (6) months. (TR 58)

The Appellant, Robert Gorrell, testified at the trial that Appellant had worked practically the whole time of his marriage to the deceased, Katherine Wentland Gorrell, (TR 60, 62, 66, 70-73, 75-76, 90-91, 107-108)

A few days following the demise of Katherine Gorrell, the Appellant, Robert E. Gorrell, was rearranging the cupboards in the kitchen so that he could work around the range and around the counter sink due to his being confined to a wheelchair, having lost both his legs, Appellant discovered in a small blue agate roasting pan, a heart shaped beauty box that contained approximately \$43,000.00, the money in question. (TR 86-87)

Upon discovering the money in question, Appellant contacted an employee of First Security Bank on Washington Boulevard, a Dennis Johnston, and informed Mr. Johnston that

he had discovered some cash in the home in which he and Decedent resided. (TR 86) The money or property discovered by Appellant is the property which Respondent has petitioned the Lower Court to recover as solely an asset of the estate of Katherine Wentland Gorrell.

On March 18, 1985, Judgment was rendered against Appellant, in that Appellant allegedly did not sustain a burden of proof in establishing that the cash asset was created either in whole or in part from assets contributed by Appellant, therefore the Court awarded the entire sum of \$43,748.00 as an asset of the estate of Decedent and required Appellant to immediately turn over to Decedent's estate the unused portion of the \$43,748.00 in Appellant's control, and further ordered Appellant not to dispose of, in any way, any assets purchased in whole or in part from the \$43,748.00 discovered in Decedent's home. (R 42, 43)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The Appellant was the primary income producer for the family, as evidenced by the trial record and resided with his now deceased wife in the same premises for more than twenty-two and a half ($22\frac{1}{2}$) years, contributing all of his income to the Decedent, who controlled the money during the twenty-two and a half ($22\frac{1}{2}$) year period, such that the

District Court has misapplied proven facts or made findings clearly against the weight of the evidence in holding that the cash found in the home subsequent to the demise of Appellant's spouse is an asset only of the Decedent's estate.

2. The District Court abused its discretion by requiring that the Appellant, by a preponderance of the evidence, prove that the cash funds were his when, in fact, the burden of proof should fall upon the estate to prove that the funds were solely the assets of the estate.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE JUDGMENT OF THE LOWER COURT IN FINDING THAT THE CASH ASSET FOUND WAS AN ASSET ONLY OF THE DECEASED WAS A FINDING MADE AGAINST THE WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE

In the trial record, Appellant testified, as well as the daughter of the deceased, as to the income which both Appellant and the deceased earned during the twenty-two and a half (22½) years of their marriage.

The Appellant testified that between 1961 to 1967, Appellant worked at odd jobs, including driving a truck for the City for six (6) months. (TR 60,62) The daughter of the deceased, testified that the Appellant worked continuously during this 1961 to 1967 period. Then Appellant

worked during 1967 for three (3) months at K-Mart, (TR62) following which he became employed full time with the DDO in 1967 working in the packing line as a Grade 2 and started at \$2.22 an hour, at which job he worked five (5) or six (6) days a week. (TR 66) Appellant testified that he missed approximately eight (8) months of work without pay in 1967, (TR 70)but that he returned to work full time in 1968 and that from 1968 until approximately twelve (12) years later in 1979 or 1980, Appellant worked steadily, and that any work that he missed due to medical problems were covered by annual leave or sick leave after that first operation. (TR 71)

Appellant further testified that while working at DDO, he attained Grade 4 and eventually Grade 5, Step 5 while working at DDO and then retired roughly around 1979 or 1980. (TR 75) Appellant further testified that during the 1970s, he earned approximately between \$7.00 and \$8.00 an hour with his income increasing during the twelve (12) year period at DDO from \$2.22 an hour to a final hourly wage of \$8.10 an hour when he retired in 1979 or 1980. (TR 76)

Appellant further testified that upon his retirement in 1979 or 1980, he was receiving a constant \$335.00 a month as a retirement payment, and that the retirement, along with

social security in 1979 was between \$500.00 and \$700.00 a month, and that his social security combined with the retirement as of the time of trial was \$706.00 a month. (TR 90, 91)

Appellant further testified that he worked as a clown in several parades each year, including the 4th of July and the 24th of July selling balloons and earned approximately \$500.00 a year at this job. (TR 107, 108)

The Appellant, as well as the daughter of the Decedent, an adverse party, testified that the Decedent, Katherine Wentland Gorrell, received approximately \$225.00 a month from social security benefits when Decedent retired at the age of sixty-two (62), and that Decedent, after retirement, no longer worked on people's hair and received no income therefrom. Further testimony was given by the Appellant that Decedent retired roughly one (1) year after the Appellant's marriage with the Decedent. (TR 91, 94, 104)

The Appellant also testified on many occasions that he left the business interest up to his wife and upon receiving any cash or pay checks, he would endorse them directly to his wife and she would handle the funds from thereon out. (TR 105)

A critical part of the testimony is that Appellant found the money in denominations of two (2) \$100.00 bills and the rest of the cash asset consisted of \$50.00s, \$10.00s, \$20.00s and \$5.00s and that the money was found in a large pile. (TR 102) This would tend to show that the money was not accumulated over a short period of time, but rather little or small amounts of money were occasionally taken from a pay check or such and deposited within the box which was put into the blue agate roasting pan of which Appellant had no knowledge. This would show an accumulation of the money over a long period of time and that it was at least drawn from a combination of the income of the Decedent and the Appellant and not solely from the income of the Decedent.

The Utah Supreme Court held in First Security Bank of Utah, N. A. vs. Hall, 29 Utah 2d 24, 504 P.2d 995 (1972), as follows:

As this Court has stated in numerous prior decisions, we will not disturb the finding of the Trial Court unless the Court has misapplied proven facts or made findings clearly against the weight of the evidence.

It is the Appellant's contention that the District Court has clearly made a finding against the weight of the evidence presented by the testimony of both the Appellant and the daughter of the deceased in finding that the cash

asset consisting of over \$43,000.00 comprised of two (2) bills, \$100.00 bills, and the remainder in \$50.00s, \$20.00s, \$10.00s and \$5.00s was solely an asset of the estate when the money was apparently accumulated over a long period of time and the Appellant was the primary income earner for the family over the twenty-two and a half (22½) year period.

POINT TWO

THE JUDGMENT OF THE LOWER COURT
CONSTITUTED AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION IN
PLACING THE BURDEN OF PROOF UPON THE
APPELLANT

Respondent herein was the petitioner in the Lower Court seeking recovery of the property from Appellant because the cash asset was currently in the possession of Appellant.

Respondent alleges that the case of the Utah Supreme Court, First Security Bank of Utah, N. A. vs. Hall, 29 Utah 2d24, 504 P.2d 995 (1972), places the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence or clear and convincing evidence upon Appellant. In that particular case, the Defendant contended that the Trial Court erred in imposing upon the Defendant the burden of proving her ownership of the shares of stock in question by way of a gift by clear and convincing evidence. The Court held as follows:

It would appear to us that the Defendant having acquired possession of the stock certificates which were carried on the books of the Corporation in the name of the Decedent, George H. Buckley, and George H. Buckley not having executed the stock transfer endorsements which were a part of each certificate, that Defendant did, in fact, have the burden of establishing her ownership by gift by clear and convincing evidence.

In the instant case, there is no proof or evidence of original ownership, such as a stock certificate with the name of the Decedent on it, but rather this case involves cash, which did not necessitate any signature for transfer, and a preponderance of evidence would suggest that the funds were those of Appellant, the primary income producer of the family.

Volume 63A Am. Jur. 2d, Property § 51 (1984) entitled Burden of Proof; Presumptions, states as follows:

There is rebuttable presumption of ownership of property from possession thereof, which is applied to real property and personal property alike... And possession of personal property may be sufficient evidence of ownership in a given case to protect one dealing with the property as that of the possessor. A person claiming ownership of property which is in the possession of another, bears the burden of proving facts essential to the claim of ownership.

The Appellant upon discovering the secreted contents of

the roasting pan, not knowing its origin, immediately contacted the Personal Representative of his deceased wife's estate for deposit of the discovered secreted funds.

In the instant case, the Respondent or estate of Katherine Wentland Gorrell claims ownership of the property which was in the possession of the Appellant, Robert Gorrell, and therefore bears the burden of proving facts essential to the claim of ownership.

29 Am. Jur. 2d, Evidence § 235 (1967) entitled Personal Property, states as follows:

As a general rule, proof of the possession of personal property is prima facia evidence of title or is said to raise the presumption of ownership which may be rebutted or overcome by evidence of ownership of another or by evidence of the circumstances surrounding the possession... Inasmuch as possession is a fact continuous in nature, it is, when its existence is once shown, presumed to continue until the contrary is proved.

Accordingly it is Appellant's argument that the Lower Court abused its discretion in requiring Appellant to bear the burden of proof in showing that the cash asset was an asset of Appellant when Appellant was in possession of same, but that, in fact, the burden of proof rested upon the party, the Respondent or estate of Katherine Wentland Gorrell in this case, which claimed ownership of property

which was in the possession of another, namely the Appellant.

CONCLUSION


It is submitted to this Honorable Court that the District Court has clearly made a finding against the weight of the evidence presented by the testimony of both the Appellant and the daughter of the deceased in finding that the cash asset consisting of over \$43,000.00 comprised of two (2) large bills, \$100.00 bills, and the remainder in \$50.00s, \$20.00s, \$10.00s and \$5.00s was solely an asset of the estate when the money or cash asset was apparently accumulated over a long period of time, and the Appellant was the primary income earner for the family over the twenty-two and a half (22½) year period, and further that the Lower Court abused its discretion in requiring Appellant to bear the burden of proof in showing that the cash asset was an asset of Appellant, when Appellant was in possession of same, and therefore had a presumption of ownership thereby placing the burden of proof upon the Respondent or estate

of Katherine Wentland Gorrell to show ownership of the cash asset.