1986

Gorrell v. Gorrell : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Estate of Katherine Wentland Gorrell, through its Personal representative, the First Security Bank of Utah, N. A., petitioned the District Court of Weber County in the Second Judicial District, for an order requiring Robert E. Gorrell, the appellant, to turn over approximately Forty-Seven Thousand Dollars (\$47,000.00) cash alleged to have been found by Mr. Gorrell in the decedent's home subsequent to her death.

A hearing on the First Security Bank's petition was held before the Honorable Judge Wahlquist on August 9, 1984. During said hearing, the parties stipulated that the amount of cash discovered by Mr. Gorrell in the decedent's home was Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred

Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00). A dispute, however, arose between Mr. Gorrell and First Security Bank as to the proper ownership of the cash found in the decedent's home.

Judge Wahlquist ordered the matter set for trial to determine the ownership of the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00).

The matter was set for trial on February 5, 1985. On the day of trial, both counsel for Mr. Gorrell and counsel for the First Security Bank stipulated that the sole purpose for the trial was for the court to determine whether the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash found by Mr. Gorrell in the decedent's home, subsequent to the decedent's death, belonged in whole or in part to the estate or whether said cash belonged in whole or in part to Mr. Gorrell.

After reviewing the stipulation of counsel and hearing the testimony in the case, the Honorable Judge David E. Roth ruled that the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash was solely the property of the decedent's estate. It is from that judgment of the District Court that Mr. Gorrell now appeals.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondent's Statement of Facts is taken from the trial transcript, which will be designated (TR), the District Court's record which will be designated (CR) and a supplemental transcript designated (Supp.TR).

The decedent, Mrs. Katherine Wentland Gorrell, died testate on May 4, 1984, at the age of eighty (80) years (CR-1). A copy of the decedent's will is found on pages 4 and 5 of the court record.

The decedent was survived by three children and her husband, Robert E. Gorrell, the Appellant. The three children's names are Normandy Wentland Johnson, Billie Wentland and Gene Wentland.

Robert E. Gorrell and the decedent were married on November 17, 1961, and had been married approximately $22\frac{1}{2}$ years at the time of the decedent's death (TR-6).

Prior to the decedent's last illness, decedent and Robert Gorrell were living in the decedent's home located at 3272 Adams Avenue, Ogden, Utah (TR-6). This home was the sole and separate property of the decedent (TR-12).

At the commencement of the trial in this matter, it was stipulated by the parties before Judge David E. Roth, as a statement of fact, that Mr. Gorrell had found Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash in the decedent's home shortly after her death (Supp. TR-114). Mr. Gorrell

testified that he found the money in question on the day Mrs. Gorrell died which was May 4, 1984 (TR-46).

Furthermore, at the trial in this matter Mr. Gorrell testified in response to questions from Respondent's counsel, that he assumed the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash had been saved from the decedent's Social Security and Mr. Gorrell's money. Mr. Gorrell admitted that no one other than the decedent knew for sure where the money came from (TR-36).

During the trial of this case, testimony was presented by both parties concerning the earning capacity and financial background of both Robert Gorrell, and the decedent.

Normandy Johnson, the decedent's daughter, testified that to the best of her recollection her mother had worked in her beauty shop until 1971 (TR-94). Mr. Gorrell testified that the decedent retired from work in her beauty shop at age 62 (TR-75). The court found from the evidence that the decedent had worked at least four or five years after her marriage to Appellant (TR-111).

Mr. Gorrell testified that he had worked various odd jobs from the time of the parties' marriage in 1961 until he became employed at K-Mart in 1967 (TR-8-9). Mr. Gorrell testified further that he worked three months at

K-Mart and thereafter became employed at the Defense Depot Ogden (TR-10). Mr. Gorrell testified that he worked for 12 years at the DDO and then retired in 1979 or 1980 (TR-23).

From the evidence at the trial concerning Mr. Gorrell's and decedent's work histories during their marriage, Mr. Gorrell argues that those facts lead to the inescapable conclusion that the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) found by Mr. Gorrell in the decedent's home was at least partly contributed to by him. Both Respondent and the court disagreed.

At the time of Mr. Gorrell's marriage to the decedent, the decedent was 57 years old and Mr. Gorrell was roughly 53 years old (TR-69). Mr. Gorrell testified at the trial in this matter that he did not own a home or a car at the time of the marriage and did not bring any assets into the marriage (TR-13). The decedent on the other hand, at the time of her marriage to Mr. Gorrell, owned a home, a car and other assets (TR-12).

Evidence presented at the trial in this matter would indicate that at the time of the decedent's marriage to Mr. Gorrell the decedent's home was completely paid for (TR-12, TR-190). The decedent's daughter, Normandy Johnson, testified that in 1963 her mother paid approximately \$1,200 cash for a hospital bill on behalf of her daughter as a wedding present (TR-108).

Normandy Johnson also testified that approximately

six years after her mother's marriage to Mr. Gorrell, her mother was in a position to pay approximately \$2,700 cash for a 1967 Chevvie II (TR-107).

Decedent was able to purchase a home and a car and pay cash for the items referred to above, prior to Mr. Gorrell's obtaining steady employment at the Defense Depot Ogden in 1967.

Testimony was also given by Mr. Gorrell that at the time of trial his Social Security and retirement incomes (approximately \$700 per month) were inadequate to meet his monthly expenses (TR-82-83). Mr. Gorrell also testified that he needed approximately \$1,000 per month to feed himself and pay his bills (TR-83).

Mr. Gorrell also testified that of the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash found in the home shortly after Mrs. Gorrell's death, Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) remained as of the date the First Security bank froze the assets (TR-45-46).

The bank had frozen the assets of Mr. Gorrell's bank account prior to Mr. Gorell's hearing before Judge Wahlquist on August 9, 1984, as evidenced by paragraph 2 of Judge Wahlquist's order dated August 29, 1984 (CR-28). Mr. Gorrell admitted during the trial, spending approximately Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars (\$38,000.00) of the cash he found in the decedent's home (TR-46). Mr. Gorrell testified further that he didn't know whether Twelve Thousand Dollars (\$12,000.00) of the Thirty-Eight Thousand

Dollars (\$38,000.00) spent by Mr. Gorrell had been spent on miscellaneous expenses (TR-50).

The court after hearing all of the testimony and evidence presented at the trial in this matter, concluded that three possibilities existed as to the origin of the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash found in the decedent's home. First, that all the money was saved from money given to the decedent by Mr. Gorrell. Second, that all of the money was saved by the decedent prior to the marriage. Third, that all of the money was saved jointly by the decedent and Mr. Gorrell during the marriage (TR-110). The court concluded that all three of these possibilities were equally possible (TR-111).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

The Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash found by Mr. Gorrell in the decedent's home was owned by the decedent at the time of her death and therefore would be presumed to be included within the decedent's estate. That Mr. Gorrell could only overcome that presumption by establishing by a preponderance of the evidence that said cash asset was contributed to in whole or in part by Mr. Gorrell. That Mr. Gorrell failed to meet that burden.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE FORTY-THREE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS (\$43,748.00) FOUND BY APPELLANT IN THE DECEDENT'S HOME WAS IN THE SOLE POSSESSION AND CONTROL OF THE DECEDENT UNTIL THE TIME OF HER DEATH

No direct evidence that the decedent was the owner of the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$443,748.00) found in her home was presented at the trial of this case. Such evidence was made virtually impossible by Mrs. Gorrell's death.

The money, according to Mr. Gorrell, was found in a heart-shaped beauty box in a blue agate roaster pan in the kitchen of the decedent's home (TR-35). Mr. Gorrell also testified that he had never done any cooking as long as he was married to Mrs. Gorrell (TR-35). Mr. Gorrell testified further that Mrs. Gorrell was "one of the best cooks going, German descent." (TR-87)

Evidence was presented during the trial showing that the decedent had large sums of cash on hand. For example, Mrs. Gorrell's purchase of a new car for \$2,700 cash, (TR-107) her cash payment of her daughter's \$1,200 hospital bill, (TR-108) and the discovery of \$1,800 cash in Normandy Johnson's ten-year-old son's pockets (TR-98), which money the daughter returned to her mother, the decedent (TR-100).

Respondent contends that at the time of the decedent's death, the only two people that could have had an

ownership interest in the money, were Mr. Gorrell and the decedent, because they were the only ones living in the house after decedent's daughter moved away in 1963 (TR-91).

Respondent contends that the fact the decedent was the owner of the discovered cash and that Mr. Gorrell had no ownership interest in the cash is established by the facts surrounding discovery of the cash and Mr. Gorrell's own statements about the money.

Mr. Gorrell testified that he found the money and at no point did Mr. Gorrell testify that he had any knowledge whatsoever of the money's existence or its whereabouts prior to the find.

Appellant argues at page 11 of his appeal brief that the money was in the possession of Robert Gorrell and that Respondent therefore should bear the burden of proof in this case. Respondent believes Appellant is referring to the fact that he possessed the money after he found it.

It seems logical to Respondent that in order to determine what assets belonged to the estate of the decedent one should look at the assets owned at the time of the decedent's death and not after the decedent's death. The critical point in time is the moment of the decedent's death.

Respondent contends that it was impossible for Mr. Gorrell, at the time of the decedent's death, to have possessed or owned the subject cash, which he did

not realize existed until finding it after the decedent's death.

Respondent responds further that the trial court correctly found that

"This money up until the time of the death of the deceased was in her possession and control and normally would be part of the estate."

(TR-162)

POINT TWO

IN ORDER TO EXCLUDE ALL OR A PORTION OF THE FORTY-THREE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS (\$43,748.00) FROM THE DECEDENT'S ESTATE, APPELLANT HAD THE BURDEN OF PROVING BY AT LEAST A PREPONDERANCE OF THE EVIDENCE THAT THE CASH DISCOVERED WAS COMPRISED IN WHOLE OR IN PART OF MONEYS CONTRIBUTED BY APPELLANT

Respondent contends that First Security Bank of Utah, N. A., vs Lucille Buckley Hall and Harold E. Hall, 504 P 2d 995 (Utah 1972), is the controlling authority on the issue of whether Robert Gorrell had the burden of proof in this case.

In that case, the personal representative of the Estate of George Hatton Buckley and his wife, Pearl Murdock Buckley, sued Lucille Buckley Hall and her husband to recover stock certificates or the proceeds from the sale of said stock certificates.

The stock certificates in question were in the name of George Hatton Buckley. The defendant effected

a transfer of the stocks on the books of the corporation into her own name and then sold the shares.

Defendant in that case contended that she had a right to the stock because it had been given to her by her mother during her mother's lifetime.

The Trial court held that the defendant had the burden of proving her ownership of the shares of stock by way of gift by clear and convincing evidence. This court affirmed the trial court's ruling. In so holding, this court also cited the case of Jones vs Cook, 223 P 2d 423 (Utah 1950).

Appellant seems to recognize First Security Bank vs Hall, supra, as the authority on the issue of who had the burden of proof. Appellant argues, however, that in the instant case there is "no proof of original ownership" and that "a preponderance of the evidence would suggest that the funds were those of Appellant" (Appellant's Brief, Page 10).

The trial court's findings are in direct contradiction to Appellant's argument in that the court found that the money, up until decedent's death, was in the possession and control of the decedent and the evidence did not preponderate in favor of the Appellant (TR-111).

Appellant also quotes from Vol. 63A AM JUR 2D, Property, §51, Page 282 (1984), which reads:

"There is rebuttable presumption of ownership of property from possession thereof, which is applied to real pro-

perty and personal property alike... And possession of personal property may be sufficient evidence of ownership in a given case to protect one dealing with the property as that of the possessor. A person claiming ownership of property which is in the possession of another, bears the burden of proving facts essential to the claim of ownership."

It appears from the standards set forth in First Security Bank vs Hall and in the above-quoted section of AM JUR, that Mr. Gorrell in order to challenge the ownership of the decedent's estate, was required to prove his interest in the cash by a preponderance of the evidence. This he failed to do.

POINT THREE

THAT THE LOWER COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION OF THE FACTS IN FINDING THAT APPELLANT HAD FAILED TO ESTABLISH BY A PREPONDERANCE OF THE EVIDENCE THAT THE FORTY-THREE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS (\$43,748.00) WAS COMPRISED IN WHOLE OR IN PART OF MONEYS CONTRIBUTED BY APPELLANT

In the case of Garcia vs Schwendiman, 645 P 2d 651 (Utah 1982), this court held as follows:

"The standard for appellate review of factual findings affords great difference to the trial court's view of the evidence unless the trial court has misapplied the law or its findings are clearly against the weight of the evidence."

In First Security Bank of Utah, N. A., vs Hall, supra, this court stated:

"As this court has stated in numerous prior decisions, we will not disturb the findings of the trial court unless the court has misapplied proven facts or made findings clearly against the weight of evidence."

Respondent contends that there were ample facts available within the court records to support the court finding by a preponderance of the evidence that the cash asset had been created wholly out of the decedent's separate money. Specifically, Respondent relies on the fact that Mr. Gorrell at 53 years of age had absolutely nothing by way of assets to show for his years of work. That the decedent had accumulated a home that was fully paid for and apparently had enough money to pay cash for the items referred in Respondent's Statement of Facts. That Mr. Gorrell after he obtained possession of the Forty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Dollars (\$43,748.00) cash found in the decedent's home spent approximately Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars (\$38,000.00) of that money in less than four months.

This court in the case of K. J. Scharf vs BMG Corporation, No. 18963, filed April 16, 1985, ruled on an appellant's challenge to the lower court's factual findings as follows:

"With respect to these matters, we take as our starting point the trial court's findings and not Erickson's recitation of the facts. To mount a successful attack on the trial court's findings of fact, an appellant must marshal all the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and then demonstrate that even viewing it in the light most favorable to the court below, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings."

Appellant has asked this court to view the facts of this case in the light most favorable to the Appellant. The

all of the evidence in

this trial, concluded that of the three possibilities which would explain the existence of the cash asset in the decedent's home, all three were equally possible (TR-111). In so ruling, the lower court held that Mr. Gorrell had failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the cash asset had been created wholly or in part by his contributions.

CONCLUSION

Respondent requests that this court affirm the decision of the lower court.